

Town of Georgetown

1639 1838
1

•
2
3

Committee: Planning Board Date: March 23, 2022 4

Time: 7:00 pm. 5

Location: Virtual Meeting via Zoom 6

7 8

9 Members present: Harry LaCortiglia, Bruce Fried, Bob Watts, George Comiskey, Joanne Laut. Staff present: Town Planner, John Cashell, Administrative Assistant, Andrea Thibault. 10

11 12

Minutes transcribed by A. Thibault. Note: Video recordings of all Georgetown Planning Board meetings may be found at www.georgetownma.gov and by choosing the Community TV option.

13 14 15

The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 by Harry LaCortiglia.

16 17

Minutes:

18 19 20

B. Watts: Motion to accept the meeting minutes from March 09, 2022 with edits.

21 B. Fried: Second.

Motion carries 4-0; via roll call vote. 1 abstain J. Laut.

23 24

22

Vouchers:

25 26 27

28

J. Laut: I move to approve the vouchers as stated on the agenda for March 23, 2022.

B. Fried: Second.

Motion carries 5-0; via roll call vote.

29 30 31

Correspondence:

32 33 34

35

36

H. LaCortiglia: We received courtesy public hearing notices from abutting towns. We will consider those approved as read. We also received a letter from DEP, dated March 1, 2022 regarding G. Mello Disposal pertaining to site suitability. DEP is notifying the town that it considers 20 Carleton Drive to be suitable site for a waste disposal transfer station.

37 38 39

Public Hearing: 2 Norino Way/Humboldteast.

40 41 42

H. LaCortiglia: I will open the public hearing continuation for 2 Norino Way, continued from January 26, 2022 for a special permit for development and operation of a marijuana business, and a special permit under major development review, and a site plan review.

44 45 46

43

B. Fried: I'd recommend that we set a time limit for each project, of 1.5 hours each.

59	J. Mann: We received comments from Mr. Graham and we did respond to his comments. My
60	understanding is that Mr. Graham is ready to issue his response. We would like to discuss the peer
61	review letter you received.
62	
63	H. LaCortiglia: I would like to see the modified plans - these were just issued last Monday. We saw a
64	full report from H.L. Graham, but he has not reviewed these plans as drawn as of yet.
65	
66	L. Graham: I can clarify. I received the plans and documents last Wednesday. I will have the letter
67	out tomorrow or Friday.
68	
69	H. LaCortiglia: Larry, has the stormwater report been reviewed?
70	
71	L. Graham: Yes. That is part of what I did review. My report on that will be coming out later this
72	week. There are still things outstanding in my report that need some attention.
73	
74	H. LaCortiglia: Snow storage area is in conflict with landscape plan. Were we able to get the
75	renderings?
76	
77	J. Mann: The landscape plans are not final nor the fencing, we have a draft.
78	
79	H. LaCortiglia: The letter from the Fire Dept. just came in today. We will get this to you Attorney
80	Mann.
81	
82	There are concerns regarding access. The fire department is having an issue with not being able to
83	exit directly. Also, other issues with question of fire hydrants on the property, lock boxes, master box
84	road plans.
85	
86	I would like to Board to allow the Fire Dept. to work directly with the applicant to resolve these safety
87	issues directly, it will be more expeditious. As far as I am concerned, the Fire Dept. speaks for us.
88	
89	J. Mann: We most certainly will. We will have to resolve the emergency access, we thought that one
90	access was acceptable. We will follow up tomorrow.
91	
92	J. Cashell: This letter from the Fire Dept. resulted from the revised plans that were submitted last
93	Wednesday. The fire department letter was issued today.

5253

54

55

565758

{Planning Board agrees.}

Jayme Fishman, applicant

Chris Drinan, Architect

T.J. Melvin, Engineer

John Mason, Odor Control Specialist

Kyle Baker, Odor Mitigation and Control System Team

Jill Mann, attorney

We have a policy of Tuesday the week before to submit material to the Planning Board prior to each 94 95 meeting. 96 97 H. LaCortiglia: Regarding the agreement for Mike Lannon as the peer reviewer for odor and noise from Tech Environmental – I will accept a motion to take on Tech Environmental as the peer 98 reviewer for 2 Norino Way, and to authorize John to sign the contract? {G. Comiskey and B. Fried 99 confirm their motion and second.} 100 101 102 G. Comiskey: So moved. B. Fried: Second. 103 104 Motion carries 5-0; via roll call vote. 105 106 H. LaCortiglia: Since Larry's review is not done at this point, and we are waiting on that - has the 107 photometric plan been submitted yet? 108 109 L. Graham: No, I do not have that. 110 111 112 J. Mann: It was part of the original submittal. It was not revised. 113 Regarding the odor peer review, we have an issue relative to timing and scope. His scope is detailed 114 and confusing. 115 116 117 Our expert, John Mason, please introduce yourself and your qualifications. We did include the confidential recommendation as well. This is not public information. 118 119 John Mason: I have 32 years' experience in the disinfection, sterilization, and odor control field in a 120 variety of industries, agriculture, pulp and paper, rendering industries. I have qualified for testimony 121 before Congress, as well as state and local courts. 122 123 124 This is all about iterative steps. There are standards from governing bodies. Once the initial approval is received, then detailed design and engineering is done. Equipment, processes and technologies will 125 be selected. To do peer review, you have to have your plans done. 126 127 128 The peer review process is an iterative process, where issues are resolved. Then the plan is presented 129 back to the governing group to decide whether the final approval will be given. 130 131 We are also putting in the monitoring programs as well, to ensure that all the steps in the process are 132 working. 133 I applaud putting in the peer review step. You do want a bright light on this, a third-party peer 134 review. 135 136 137 H. LaCortiglia: The peer review will be the same as the stormwater peer review. In the end, everyone

benefits.

- J. Mann: What is the peer reviewer going to look at? It is almost as if he is going to recommend what
- systems we should use. We do not yet have a permitted use and we have not yet fully designed the
- system. There cannot be detailed plans developed before the approval.

What is he going to review if the plans are not developed? The peer reviewer has nothing to review.

145

146 The MEP and construction level plans have not been done.

147

We are talking about doing a design. It has not been done. We need to know that this is the appropriate site first.

150

J. Fishman: Our intention is to be a strong partner with the community. We look forward to the peer review process. There is a pragmatic reality – the town maintains control.

153

154 If we expend monies now, for a peer review before the complete design is done, it is not money well 155 spent because the appropriate level of detail is not provided to the vendor.

156

157 H. LaCortiglia: We will take that into consideration. Let's see what the first peer review looks like.

158

J. Cashell: I've talked with Mr. Lannon several times now. There probably isn't a more qualified firm to do an odor and noise peer review such as this.

161

They are working throughout the country on marijuana peer reviews. This is their forte – to ensure that industrial uses are not causing adverse impacts to resident abuttors. This is one of the top firms.

164

There is no question that Mr. Lannon absolutely sides with Planning Boards and government entities regarding adverse impact with odor and noise. He really convinced me completely that he does the job for the entity that is hiring him and does an incredibly thorough job.

168

We have an applicant that is willing to go through this peer review process, and wants to do everything they can to mitigate any adversity to residential abuttors.

171

We have two qualified engineering firms working together to ensure that all mitigation is ensured.

173

Mr. Lannon is ready to begin. He can come back at the next meeting, and discuss how he will conduct this peer review.

176

We have had a real good discussion tonight, but we need to bring our peer reviewer in, and let's see how it works out at our next meeting. I think that is the best way to progress this step by step.

179

180 This Planning Board is doing everything they can, and should do for the community, and for this particular business.

182

183 This is a new industry. We are interested in doing this right. Having Mr. Lannon at the next meeting to discuss this peer review is what I think we need to do at this point in time.

- B. Fried: I agree with John. I think we should have Mr. Lannon come in. Humboldt has a concept;
- they have a conceptual idea.

The peer reviewer could review the concept, and when we can, we get the full review of the actual design.

H. LaCortiglia: Yes, I agree. We would like to see a collaboration between the applicant and the peer reviewer. Instead of a peer review being a criticism, we would like to see a collaboration.

J. Mann: Yes, we agree.

G. Comiskey: I just want to clear up a few things. I was looking over some of the proposed conditions.

- You mentioned that a well will be put in if needed I know that we talked about conserving water.
- You said that we won't draw on Georgetown water for irrigation. If that is the case then we need to see that on the plan beforehand.

T. J. Melvin: Yes, we can add that to the plan.

J. Mann: We will add that to the plan.

G. Comiskey: You submitted for your energy savings plan that you will conform to CMR 935.

I'd like to see more detail. I'd like to see the energy savings plans. You said that you will be the biggest energy user in town.

J. Fishman: We have to comply with the Cannabis Control Commission's wattage regulations.

If you are looking for more detail, see 500.120, with regard to lighting. That is a conservative usage in the industry, it is quite a hinderance to the cultivation community at large.

G. Comiskey: I did read 500.120. I would like to see you confirm what equipment you'll be using to conserve energy.

J. Mann: We will provide that. I will incorporate it.

J. Laut: What is the source of water? Will all the water be coming from the Georgetown water supply?

J. Mann: Yes, but we will reclaim 50% of the water used. So, we conserve water by that amount. The water will be processed in storage tanks.

H. LaCortiglia: You are essentially planning 2,500 gallons a day usage.

I. Mann: Yes. We need to finalize our plans on the landscaping and irrigation. I will provide the narrative and renderings also.

H. LaCortiglia: Drought resistant, non-irrigated plants are my preference.

235	
236	G. Comiskey: My preference also.
237	
238	H. LaCortiglia: Is there a motion to continue the public hearing for 2 Norino Way to April 13, 2022
239	at 7pm.
240	
241	G. Comiskey: So moved.
242	B. Fried: Second.
243	Motion carries 5-0; via roll call vote.
244	
245	
246	J. Mann: I will have the renderings for you.
247	
248	
249	
250	
251	Public Hearing: G. Mello Disposal, 20 Carleton Drive Definitive Subdivision application.
252	
253	H. LaCortiglia: This was supposed to start at our last meeting, but there was a notification problem.
254	just want to make it clear that tonight is the opening of the public hearing.
255	
256	J. Cashell: {Reads the public hearing notice into the record.}
257	
258	Nancy McCann, attorney
259	Jason Mello, applicant
260	Scott Cameron, engineer
261	
262	N. McCann: This is new subdivision that consists of a subdivision roadway with two lots off of that
263	roadway. It is pretty straightforward.
264	
265	S. Cameron: These plans are dated January 6, 2022. There is frontage on Carleton Drive.
266	
267	The proposal is to extend a roadway into the site, with a turnaround providing access to two new lots
268	fronting on the new road. It will also create two unbuildable parcels. Parcel A will be allocated to
269	drainage. Parcel B is primarily open land and wetlands. The property abuts Rt. 95.
270	
271	Wetland cut across the property. The property is 14.75 acres. Void of mature trees. The wetlands
272	were reviewed and approved by the Georgetown Conservation Commission under an order of
273	resource delineation.
274	
275	For the curbing; underground water; electric; gas; sidewalk, turnaround; pavement; stormwater
276	management; catch basins; stormwater treatment; retention basin - these will all meet subdivision
277	regulations.
278	
279	{Mr. Cameron also reviews the plan for catch basins; hydrodynamic separator treatment structure that polishes the
280	stormwater; gas traps and sumps in the system; detention surface pond; underground utilities; retaining wall along the
281	edge of roadway; property is a flat site — no steep grades; hydrant spacing; drainage; access easement.}
282	

I

The water resource district does cut across the property. We designed the stormwater system outside of the district.

285

H. LaCortiglia: Do you have fire hydrant on site? How much fill are you bringing in with respect to the soil importation permit.

288

S. Cameron: Yes, we have a hydrant, and the spacing is per regulations. I can provide you a more exact number for the volume of fill. We are filling three feet.

291

292 H. LaCortiglia: Is that part of the peer review, with Larry Graham, would you normally discuss?

293

294 S. Cameron: Yes.

295

296 H. LaCortiglia: You said there were two easements. Where is the second easement?

297

S. Cameron: Number one is the frontage. Number two is the underground drainage management system. These are the concrete pipes and the small easement goes just outside the right of way.

300

301 H. LaCortiglia: Who is granting the easement to whom?

302

S. Cameron: The easement stays with who owns the road, to ensure that outflow would be maintained. It belongs to whoever owns the road. If it is a private road, the owner would own the easement.

306

If the road was transferred to the town, through road acceptance at town meeting, then the town would own the easement.

309

- 310
- G. Comiskey: My understanding is that there is an approved use with a plan of file with the ZBA.
 About a year ago, there was an ANR filed on this property. And, now we have a subdivision road.

313

Would this new plan invalidate the use plan that you have with the ZBA?

315

N. McCann: Those are three separate processes. There is a special permit plan that you referenced, there is also the ANR plan, and this is the definitive subdivision plan. They are separate. One does not invalidate the other.

319

G. Comiskey: If we approve this subdivision road, at some point if you came back to do some construction would that require Site Plan Review and Approval?

322

N. McCann: It would depend on what the construction is that you are referring to.

324

If it were construction of a building on one of these lots and site plan approval is required under the zoning bylaw, if the construction is the roadway....

327

328 G. Comiskey: Construction on one of the lots.

N. McCann: If there were construction on one or both of the created lots, and the zoning bylaw requires site plan approval, then we would apply for site plan approval.

332333

G. Comiskey: Third legal question. I was looking at the deed. The deed references an old road coming though the property. Is it required to be shown on the plan?

336

N. McCann: No, it is not required to be shown on this plan.

338

339 G. Comiskey: And, even if it were deemed a public way?

340

N. McCann: If it were a public way, it would typically be shown on the plan.

342

- We do not believe that is the case. A right of way does not make it a public way. If there is a public
- way, we would typically show on the plan. The title on this property is complicated. That is part of
- 345 what the ANR was about.

346

H. LaCortiglia: As part of the subdivision requirements, we show rock walls, natural features. Should this road be on the plan Scott?

349

S. Cameron: There is a lot of history with the title of this property. For example, it used to extend further to the east until they built I-95.

352

To my knowledge, but I will check with the surveyor, there are not right of ways on this property. I will double check that.

355

N. McCann: Mike Surgey did a lot of work on this title and this property when we did the ANR plan.

357

358 H. LaCortiglia: Please look into this and put it on the plan.

359

G. Comiskey: Your wetland impact statement says minor filling is to take place. Adding up the two places of fill it adds up to 8,500 sq. feet of fill. Will that require a MEPA filing?

362

S. Cameron: We are proposing to replicate about 8,000 sq. feet for the road. You are correct. It would require some Army Corp. permitting. There would be some work to do on that end of it.

365

I haven't gone through full MEPA. I would have to double check on MEPA.

367

G. Comiskey: I said there would be some increased encroachment. You responded previously that you would need less than 5,000 sq. feet. At 5000 sq. feet --it triggers an ENF.

370

Can you get a MEPA advisory and get back to us? Send any correspondence to us saying if it does and it doesn't. Would you be willing to do it?

373

374 S. Cameron: Yes. I will to the extent it is in my control.

375

G. Comiskey: MEPA supposed to get back to you within 20 days with their opinion.

- Going back through old meeting minutes for June 23rd, 2021 with the preliminary plan. I asked regarding the plan for the basin – retention instead of infiltration basin. Scott said water is too high for infiltration basin. It looks like the current plan is different. Can you explain that? S. Cameron: This is a detention basin so we are not accounting from any groundwater recharge. We are doing 90% of the cleaning on the water before it gets to there. H. LaCortiglia: How high does the water get before it exits the retention pond? S. Cameron: The outlet control structure manages it. This will fill up. The bottom is at 84. It is only intended to get about a foot in a peak storm event. G. Comiskey: From the stormwater report, you are using 100-year rainfall. 8.95. The last applicant uses the NRCC numbers and came up with 9. What table are you looking at? What rainfall gauges did you use? S. Cameron: I used NRCC tables for the town. I'm happy to make an adjustment. G. Comiskey: I see you've indicated a lot of seeding. Are there supposed to be landscaped trees along the roadway? S. Cameron: We could certainly add those. I thought we had those on there. G. Comiskey: Is there a schematic for the retaining wall? How it will be constructed? S. Cameron: I'll get that for you. It will be a modular wall. H. LaCortiglia: I'll accept a motion for Larry Graham to review the plans for a peer review. G. Comiskey: So moved. J. Laut: Second. Motion carries 5-0; via roll call vote. B. Fried: What is the purpose of splitting off Parcel B, with all the wetlands? Will you be donating
 - that as conservation land?
- S. Cameron: There are some interesting conditions in the zoning bylaw regarding landscaping. It makes us not want to have a bunch of land we can't use.
- So, we would want to get rid of it. Who it goes to remains to be seen?

J. Samul, 16 Carleton Dr.: Currently, along the edge of our land, there is an existing concrete wall that acts as a water catch basin and water retention area. It is lower than our driveway by 3-4 feet. What is the plan for that?

S. Cameron: We are including a pipe under the road to maintain the flow coming off of that. This is just wall where trash and debris has accumulated over the years. G. Comiskey: Does that show on your plan? S. Cameron: Yes. It says proposed HW, that is head wall. G. Comiskey: Will there be any treatment? S. Cameron: No. We are not obligated to treat that. J. Samul: How do you approve a subdivision, with no knowledge of what is going to be in the subdivision? Because that could impact the abuttors. H. LaCortiglia: The bottom line is that we are approving the subdivision roadway. The roadway itself. If this applicant meets or exceed all of those specifications then they are allowed to build a subdivision roadway on the land that they own. The use is only important in that an industrial/commercial roadway has slightly different specifications than a residential roadway. Commercial and industrial roadways are the same standard. J. Cashell: We need to hear from Larry Graham. Larry, how long will your initial peer review take, so we can plan for when to continue the next hearing? L. Graham: I need to peruse the application. I'd like to have at least 30 days.

J. Cashell: That puts us into the April 27th date for a continuation.

Kathy Birmingham, 12 True Lane: The plan for the transfer station was denied by the Planning Board. I believe that Mr. Mello has filed a lawsuit.

How does this work? Can you explain what this application is about?

N. McCann: This is a separate matter. This is unrelated to anything that has happened with regard to the transfer station.

This is simply a subdivision plan done under the subdivision control law. It provides some protection going forward with the development of this property for a period of time.

It establishes the zoning from a period of time, and for a period of time. It has no relation to the lawsuit.

K. Birmingham: It is a concern when there is no use.

474 475	N. McCann: This is a process under 40A section 6, that allows certainty for zoning.
476 477	Theodora Capulto, 111 West St.: If this is subdivision approved, will that land continue to be commercial? Or, is it also an application to change the zoning to industrial?
478 479 480	H. LaCortiglia: It exists as commercial; this application does not change the zoning.
481 482	T. Capulto: So, this would remain commercially zoned. The application was submitted by Mello and Mirra. Is this a joint project? Who has applied?
483 484 485	H. LaCortiglia: If town meeting wanted to change it to another use, it would have to be at town meeting to change the zoning with a 2/3 majority in most cases.
486 487 488 489	N McCann: The applicant is G. Mello Disposal Corp., who is the contract purchaser of the property. The landowner is Mirra. G. Mello is the contracted purchaser and the applicant. That means that they are under agreement to purchase the property.
490 491 492	Ritchie Kopacinski, 5 Spaulding Rd: Would the two abuttors on Spaulding Road - are they still considered abuttors?
493 494 495 496	N. McCann: It would depend on how the tax assessor treats the parcels and whether they are treated as separate assessed lots.
497 498 499	That varies from municipality and municipality for how that is done. The Assessor's records are usually updated once a year.
500 501	H. LaCortiglia: I will hear a motion to continue to April 27, 2022.
502 503 504	G. Comiskey: So moved. B. Fried: Second. Motion carries 5-0; via roll call vote.
505 506	Motion carries 5 %, via ron can vote.
507508509	Planning Office:
510 511	1. Community Preservation Committee.
512513514515	H. LaCortiglia: I am the Planning Board's representee on the Community Preservation Committee. The Committee has reviewed the proposals submitted. Please go to the town website for the public information meeting on April 5, 2022 via Zoom.
516 517 518	2. MBTA Communities.
519	{Planning Board requests that the Town Planner write a comment letter re: Planning Board's review of the MBTA

Community Zoning mandate.}

J. Cashell: Recognizing how much the town does support affordable housing, I gave some good examples. I think the problem with this new statue is that the statute calls for high density more suitable to urban core communities that have sewer and water systems. We support multifamily and equitable housing; it just has to be considered by the state to be in scale and character to the infrastructure of the community. We have environmental and utility constraints. Do the Board members want to edit those comments? H. LaCortiglia: What you wrote looks fine to me. The Chairman of the Select Board sent some comments. Will you incorporate his comments into your letter? J. Cashell: Yes. The deadline is March 31. G. Comiskey: I like the comments, I would like to add the Planning Department's mission statement. And, saying that this does not support the mission statement, and it does not support the master plan. It goes against our mission and master plan. J. Cashell: Yes, I will add that. J. Laut: This is a very good response, and sums up all our thoughts on the process. H. LaCortiglia: Please send our response and: cc to the Board. J. Cashell: There was a meeting conflict tonight with the Finance Committee. FY23 budget meeting was tonight for the Planning Board budget at the same time as this meeting. There is not much proposed to change. In past years, when there was a conflict, Mike Farrell would handle it. The new town administrate will handle it tonight. Motion to adjourn: B. Fried. Second: J. Laut. Motion carries 5-0; via roll call vote. Meeting adjourned at 9:35pm.